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I Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

A. Acronyms and Abbreviations

ED Executive Director

FY Financial Year

GOK Govemment of Kenya

IAS International Accounting Standard

KK Kenya Kwanza Coalition

M.P Member of Parliament

MCA Member of County Assembly

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

N.E.C National Executive Committee

NDC National Delegates Committee

NGC National Coverning Council

EDRC Election Dispute Resolution Committee.

PG Parliamentary Croup

S.C Secretary General

UDA United Dcmocratic Alliance

IPSAS lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards

OAC Oftlce of the Auditor General

ORPP Office of Registrar of Political Parties.

BETA Bottom-Up Economic 'lransformation Agenda.

B. Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Members ol Management directly entrusted with the
responsibility of financial resources of the organisation

Comparative Year- Means the prior period.

2. Key Enlity lnformation and Management

(a) Backgroundinformation

United Democratic Alliance is the ruling political parry registered under the office ofthe Registrar of

Political Parties (ORPP), under the Political Parties Act. The Party is funded by the National Treasury

through the ORPP and also by the public. Our commitment to the national values and principles of

govemance enshrined in the constitution of Kenya.
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The Party is a major shareholder in Kenya Kwanza Alliance. The Party's registration number is 0015.

(b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity/mission of United Democratic Alliance (UDA) is to ensure a just and

prosperous nation tkough good govemance, nurturing the right political atmosphere for business and

industries to thrive, development of human resource, loster stability and welfare of the people of

Kenya. The pa(y is founded on the principles of good govemance including equality, diversity, love,

unity, freedom, justice, accountability, transparency and peace - Article I ofUDA Constitution.

Key Management

UDA's day+o-day management is under the following key organs:

(c) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2023

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Executive Director Nicodemus Bore

2 Deputy Executive Director Brian Higgins Mbugua

J Director Finance & Administration Joseph Mulili

4 Director Programs & Partnership Daniel Kiptoo

5 Director Legal Emmanuel Kibet

6 Director Membership Samuel Mwangi

7 Director Media & Publicity Rob Gillo

8 Director Events & Logistics Grace Murigi

9 Director Diaspora & Intemational Relationships Charles Metoke

l0 Intemal Auditor CPA Mervin Wamukota

Chairperson H.E Cecily M. Mbarire

2 Secretary General Sen. Cleophas Malalah

3 Treasurer Hon. Japheth Nyakundi

4 National Organising Secretary Hon. Vincent Musau
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(d) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

- National Executive Commiltee

- National Steering Commi ee

- Audit commi ee

- Procurement committee

- Finance Commitlee

- EDRC

- National Elections Board

- Budget commitlee

- Audit committee

- National Steering Commillee

- Tender Commitlee

- Parliamentary Group

- Electoral Dispute & Resolulion Committee

- National Governing ('ommillee

- Office of the Registrar of Political Parties

- Office of Auditor General

Kimani Ichung'wa5 Senate Majority Leader

Sen. Aaron Cheruiyot6 National Assembly Majority Leader

Nicodemus Bore7 Executive Director

Brain Higgins K. MbuguaDeputy Executive Director8

VI
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Key Entity Information and Management (continued)

(e) EntityHeadquarters

P.O. Box 37500 - 00100 Nairobi
Hustler Plaza
Ndemi Road,
OffNgong Road,
Nairobi, KENYA

(f) Entity Contacts

Telephone: (254) 746 - 568851

E-mail: hello@UDA.ke

Website: UDA.ke

(g) Entity Bankerr

EQUITY BANK LTD
Supreme Branch Nairobi
P.O. Box 75104
City Square 00200
NAIROBI, KENYA

ACCESS BANK (KENYA) PLC
Mama Ngina Branch
P.O. 34353-00100
NAIROBI KENYA

(h) IndependentAuditor

Auditor-General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(D Principal Legal Adviser

Office of Attomey General

P.O. Box 56057

00200

Nairobi, Kenya

1

2
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,

Key Entity Information and Managcment (continued)

3- National Executive Commi(tee

Cecily M. Mbarire National Chairperson
.2. Cleophas Malalah Secretarl, General

3 Japheth Nyakundi National Treasurer
4 Vincent Musyoka Musau National Organizing Secretary
5 Hassan Omar Hasan DeputyChairperson Strategy
6 Marete Nicholas Kimathi Deputy Chairperson - Stralegy
7 Mohammed Sahal Deputy Secretary General - Operations
8 Daniel Munturwa Ole Sambu Deputy Secrelary General - Programs
9 Seth Sindani Ambusini Panyako Deputy Chairperson - Programs
l0 Kanake Joshua Mugo Deputy National Treasurer- Programs
ll Otucho Mary Emaase Deputy National Treasurer- Strategy
t2. Rotich David Kipkemoi Deputy National Treasurer-Operations
l3 Jamhuri Guyo Warda Depuly National Organizing Secretary -Operations
14. Wakili Edward Muriu Secretary Legal Allairs
l5 Ndii Franklin Mbuba Secretary MSME s, Tradc and Industrialization

Shako Ronald Mwasambo Secretary for Lands, Housing and Urban Planningt6
Kabiru Mary Waniiku Secretary Youth Affairs, Sports &Culture17.

18. Iilina Mapenzi Samini Secretary Water and Sanitation
l9 Julius Mathenge Kabue Secretary Agriculture , [,ivestock and F isheries
20 I lussein Adan Somo Secrctarv Inlemat ional Affairs
21. ["rancis Ngotho Maina Secretary Energy, Petroleum and Mining

Ngitit Cecilia Asinyen Secretary Transport and I nfrastructure22
23. Robert Maina Theuri Secretary Education
24. Niathi Ceciliah Wairimu Secrctary Women Affairs
25. Ipato Surum Korema Secrctary Tourism, Environment and Natural Resources

26. Mwangagi Diana Katile Secretary Ibr Information, Communication and Technology
2t_ Paulinc Lenguris Secrelary Pcrsons with Disabilities
28. Mark Lemunokol Secretary Devolution and Intergovemmental Relations
29. Manyarkiy Leah Jelagat Secrctary for Health

30. Aaron Cheruiyot Maiority [.eader, Senate

31. Kimani Ichung'wa Maiority Lcader. National Assr'mbly
32. Anne Waiguru Chairperson, Govemors Caucus
33 Bonny Khalwale Whip Senate

l4 Silvanus Osoro Onyiego Whip National Assembly
35 Stephen Kipyego Sang Whip Govemors Caucus
t6 'I-huku Meshack Kiruga Chairperson, MCA Caucus

Ilon Hassan I laii Mohamoud Whip, MCA Caucus37
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National Executive Committee

I

r
H.E Hon. Cecily Mutitu Mbarire. MGH,

EGH
National Chairperson.

Acadcmic Qualifi cation:
ligerlon University Bachelor in Arts

(llconomics and Sociology)

United States Inlernalional University - Global
Executive Master of Business Administration

Born: 26th December 1972
Hon. Cecily Mbarire is a seasoned
Legislature and a profound public
administrator with over twenty years'
experience in national politics & govemance
Work Exnerience
United Democratic Alliancc - Chairperson
Govemor Embu County
Kenya National Assembly - Member of
Parl iament, Nominated (Special Interest)
Majority Deputy Chiel
Whip. Member of Parliament Runyenjes
Constiluency
Kenya Women Parliamentarians
Association (KEWOPA) - Chairperson and
Treasurer
Amani Forum - Kenya Chapter (Regional
Peace Initiative for East and Central Africa
Parliamentarians)
Professional Exnerience

Departmental Committee on Energy,
Communication & Information
Departrnental Committee on Transport,
Public Works & Housing
Public Accounts Committee - Vice
Chairperson

B. l2'h Parliament

Departmental Committee on Energy-member
Committee on Appointments-member
Procedure and l'louse Rules Commitlee-
member

A. I lIh Parliament

tx
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DOB: 30' June 1985

Sen. Cleophas Malalah is a vibrant and
acutely analytical legislature and debalor. He
brings deep weallh in party visibility.
publicity and in marketing party ideologies.
Works ExDerience
Member of the County Assembly - l,urambi
ward
Member of Parliament - Kakamega County
Uni(ed Democratic Alliance - Secrelary
General

2

t
Hon. Scn. Clcophas Malalah

Secretary General
Academic Qualificalion - United Statcs

Inlirrnralional Univcrsity - []achelor's Degree in
Information System

Masindc Muliro University ol Science
Master of Science in Diplomacy and

Intemational Relations

3

Hon. Japheth Nyakundi
National Treasurer

Academic Qualifications - [Jnilcd Statcs
Internalional Univcrsity ([]Sc International

Business Adnrinistration)

Work Exrrerience
Member olparliament --Kitutu Chache North
(LIDA I'arty)
United [)emocratic Alliance - Treasurer

Member - Budget Committec. National
Asscmbly

Professional exlrerience

llonors & Awards: Kenya Scout Association,
Nyanza Province Secondary Schools Sports
Association, Kisii Clentral District Sccondary
Schools co-curricular Activities

x
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4

t. '"?'tt

f L
Hon. Eng. Vincent Musyoka Musau

Kawaya.
National Organizing Secretary

Acadcmic Qualifi cations : Massachusetts
Institute ol"lcchnology (MI1'), USA - Digital

Fabrication

University ol'Nairobi llachclorol'Science
(BSc) I')lectrical and Inlbrmation llnginecring

Hon. Vincenl Musyoka is a consccutive three
lerm MP for Mwala conslituency.

Eng. Musyoka is an outstanding figurc with
impeccable Leadership and organisational
acunlen.

Currently. he is the Chair Energy Comnrittce
National Assembly

5 ?

\

Hon. Muriu Wakili Ed*ard
Secretary Legal Affairs

Education/nrofessional qualifi cation
The Institute of Certificd Public Secretaries
of Kenya - (iovcmance Auditors'
Accrcditation ('ourse

Coach l)cvelopment Institute - ('ertified
[]xccutivc Lcadcrship Coach
Euro Money-London - Syndicated l-oan
'l'raining

Commonwcalth I nstitutc of Directors
Craduatc
African Rcal Estate Finance & Investment
School Cape Town, SA Graduate

l.:'j't?-
€

Professional ExDericnce
Professional affiliations: Law Society of
Kenya; the Institule of Certified Public
Secretaries of Kenya; Intemational Bar
Association; Institute of Directors (Kenya):
Commonwealth [,awyers Association Kenya
Association of Manufacturers; Kenya Private
Sector Alliance

xl
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Kenya School of Law - Diploma in Law
University of Nairobi Faculty of Law -
Degree (LLB)
Work Exoerience
Member of Parliament - National Assembly
(Gatanga Constituency)
Muriu Mungai & co Advocates LLP -
Founding Partner, Team Leader, I lead ol
Strategy & Business Development

6

Nicodemus Bore
Executive Director.

Prol'essional Qualification - Moi University

DoB - l5th September 1976

Academic/ProfessionaI qualifi cations

Primary - Uhuru Primary School

Secondary - Rongai agricultural and technical

high school nakuru

Work Director Membership Jubilee Party,

CEO KESSHA

CEO African Confederation of Prinoipals

ProfessionaI Experience

Director NGO- Coordination Board

Treasurer Political Parties Liason Committee

Member Presidential working party on

education reforms

xll
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4. Kcy Managemcnt Team

Nicodemus []ore
Executive Dircctor

In charge of the party secrctariat and

ovcrsees thc day-to-day operations ol'the

Party;

Chicf Executive and Secretary to National

Executive Committco, Head of Campaigns.

Nominations and campaigns

2

Ilrian Mbugua
[)eputy Iixecutive Director

Deputizes the ED and in charge of ICT &

Party Systems.

Secretary to NEB.

In charge ofParty Primaries, Crassroots

Elcctions, National Elections and By-

Llections Management & Strategics.

x l
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Other Key Members of the Managemenl Team

3
Joseph Mulili

Director Finance and Administration

I

( )r crsee antl lcatl annual budgeling and

planninu proccss irr conjunction rl'ith thc Irl):

atlnrinislcr and rcr icu all Ilnarrcial plans arrtl

hudgcts: rnonitor progrcss rrrrd clrangcs: and

kcep senior leadership teanr ahreasl ol'tlrc

olganizat ion's linancial slatus. illanirgc

()ru:rr) i/irt i( |lrill clrsh llorr irn\l li)reeilstir]u.

4

CPA Marvin Wamukota
Intemal Auditor.

Exanrine and analyze party's records and

financial documents. Identily issucs like

compliancc concems, risks, lraud, and data

inaccuracics. Revieu all rccords u ithin the

audit scopl; and investigate any problem(s)

identified.

linsure adcquacy ol'party systcm ol'intemal

controls,and asseses compliance with

policies

5
Director Programs & Partnership

Director Party Programs and Operational
actr vr tles

6
Dircctor Mcdia & Publicity

In charge ol' Media and general positive
party image
I Iead of Mcmbq5ship Activation & I Iead of
Field Serviccs7

Membership Director

8
Dircctor Events & Logistics

Managemenl of events and venues,
Logistics, Supply Chain Management
Director of l,egal and Party General
ComplianocI Director Lcgal

l0 Dircctor Diaspora
ln charge of Intemational Relations and

Diaspora Matters

xlv
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5. Chairperson'sStatement

Under my leadcrship as the team leader of'the National Executive Committee (NEC) and as the United
Democratic Alliance (UDA) National Chairperson, I am pleased to announce the remarkable progress
towards higher levels of political leadcrship that our Party has achieved since its fbrmation. During
the 2022 General Election, UI)A securcd a historic victory, obtaining more seats in the Gubematorial,
Senatorial, Mcmbers of National Assembly. and Members o{- County Assembly elective positions
than any other party.

During my inaugural ycar as the National Executive Committee (NEC) tearn leadcr. we initiated a
positive paradigm shifi that saw the translation of our Party's campaign manifesto promises into
tangible actions. Cognizant ol'the nccessity fbr elfective govemance, the NIIC fully instituted and
mandated the National Steering Committee (NSC) to conduct regular and productive meetings.
empowering it to make decisions on behalfof thc Party.

The NSC has demonstrated its ellectiveness by providing policy directions for Party affairs and
implemcnting well{hought-oul measures aligned with the Pa(y's manifesto. This has been guided by
the NSC's comprehensive work plan that rellects the party's goals.

Our commitment to consistency in ideological progression distinguishes us from other political parties
that view power as a fleeting vehiole. We have purposely rejected the common practice of only
seeking votes during the last year ofan administration, and opted instead to strategically re-engineer
our party programs to keep the interests ofour supporters and voters at the forefront ofour endeavours.

To enhance grassroots engagement, we plan to conneot with our members through various initiatives,
including & not limited lo 'gumzo mtauni'wilh local vendors, 'baruzas'wilh boda bodas, town hall
meetings with potential grassroots ollicials, and one-on-one interactions. Recognizing the importance
of disseminating govemment achievements and countering negative propaganda, we are committed
to showcasing our positive works through thcse forums.

'lhrough a democratic and well-organized engagement mechanism, our goal is to scale even higher
heights of political leadership and good govemance. Our vibrant recruitment efforts will ensure a fair
selection olour Pa(y's office bearers fiom within our ranks. l'he efficient and ef'fectivc management
ofthe Party allairs will be actualized under thc guidance ofthcse officials.

As the UDA National Chairperson, I have full confldence that with our sustained ellbrts and
commitmenl. we will continue lo ascend to greater heights olpolitical leadership in Aliica.

Asan a

I.I.E btrIi re

National Chairperson

xv
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6. Secretary General's Statement.

I am pleased to announce a series of remarkable achievemenls of our Party the United Democratic
Alliance (UDA); a testament to our commitment to growth, inclusivity, and empowerment of our
members. I extend my heartl-elt gratitude to our dedicated team members, partners, and all those who
have supported us in this incredible joumey.

Over the past year, we have demonstrated our commitment to groMh and inclusivity through various
initiatives. Our party conducled membership activations in twenty-live out ol forty-seven counties,
resulting in the registration ofover 1.5 million new mcmbers. This achievement reflects the increasing
appeal of UDA and the trust placed in our party's vision and leadership.
In addition to cxpanding our membership, we have focused on the prof'essionalization ofour party by
absorbing dedicated volunteers into lbrmal employment. This has created a more structured and

elficient organization. supplemented by the addition of new employees with divcrse skills and

experiences.

We are also committed to operating in compliance with the Political Parties Act, Section (f) (iii), by
actively working on establishing branch offices in various counties. This ensures accessibility and
responsiveness to the unique needs ofeach region, strcngthening our presence and engagemenl at the
grassroots level.
Recognizing the vital role ol'young people, we initiated the "Youth na Bizz Expo" to empower
twenty UDA lobby groups in Nairobi County. This included valuable training in collaboration with
relevant govemment depa(mcnts of MSMEs, BRS, AGPO, and banks, emphasizing company
creation and access to funds like the tlustler Fund. This initiative is a testament to our commitment
to nurturing thc entrepreneurial spirit among our youth.
Our recent electoral victories, including the Member of Parliament seat in Kandara Constituency, the
Senatorial seat in Elgeyo Marakwet County, and the win in Garissa Township C'onstiluency.
demonslrate the trust and support we have gained in various regions across the country.
As we prepare tbr grassroots elections in April, August, and December, we aim to strenglhen the
democratic process, providing a platform fbr our members' voices to be heard at all levels ol'
government.
UDA's commitment to embracing party diversity is evident through our acceptance of defectors from
other political parties, widening our popularity in regions where support was previously limited. Wc
have also strengthened our intemational relations, notably with the Communist Party of China (CPC),
promoting shared values and developing bilateral agreements.
Continuing to work closely with our developing partners, we tbcus on programs to grow skillsets,
knowledge, and experience targeting women, youth and Special Interest Groups.
Overall, thesc achievements underscore our unwavering commitment lo growlh, inclusivity, and the
empowermenl olour members in particular and Kenyans in general. Moving tbrward, we aim to strive
for excellence and tirelessly pursue our goals to serve lhe interests of the people ofKenya. I'hank you
lbr your co inued support, and we anticipate cven more signilicant accomplishments in the Iuture.

Sen. ophas Malalah
Secretary Cencral

xvl
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7. Nationel Treasurer's Stetement

As the National l'reasurer ofour cstecmed political party. I am honored to present our evolution thal
highlights our noteworthy achievements over the past year lbllowing our resounding victory in thc
2022 General eleclions. 1'his period has been marked by signilicant progress, growth, and linancial
stability. enabling us to stcadllstly pursuc our mission of serving thc Kenyan people and advancing
our nation's future.

As part ofour existent as a political Party, adequate funding ensures that the Party carries oul its core
mandate to the Kenyan citizenry. ln this regard, funds securcd fiom the Office of the Registcr of
Political Parties require that we are committed to financial prudcnce. transparency, and adherence to
our country's electoral laws. 'l'hcse funds have empowered us to advance our agenda and better catcr
to the needs ofour Kenyans.

Our party has also been able to receive substantial financial support through special membership
contributions, providing crucial resources for day-tu-day expenses. Additionally, generous
contributions from donors, oryanizalions, individuals, and businesses with whom we share common
values have bolslered our financial standing. Additionally, thc subscription fees from IJDA elected
members have also played a pivotal role in enhancing our party's financial position. These
contributions have not only strengthened our financial capability but also aflirm the unwavcring
dedication ofour elected representatives to.our party's vision and mission.

Another significant accomplishment in the past one (l ) year has been the meticulous preparations for
the upcoming grassroots elections. Recognizing the importance of grassroots engagement, we have
invested lime, resources. and energy lo ensure our party is well-prcpared for these crucial contests.
Strategies have been developed to identify, support, and field capable candidates representing thc
interests of our communities.

liurthcrmore. strides have been made in enhancing thc knowledge and skills oforir pany's sccretariat.
A comprehensive training program has been initiated to equip our secretariat with the necessary lools
to navigate the evolving political landscape and efficiently serve our membets and supporters. Our
commitment to core values remains unwavering, promoting inclusivity, accountability, and
transparency in all endeavors. Open dialogue and engagement with our supporters continue to be a
comerslone of our success.

As we reflect on the past year's achievements, let us remember that our journey is ongoing. While we
celebrate our successes, we musl remain vigilant and continue working tirelessly for the betterment
ol'our parly and nation. The road ahead may be challenging but united as a determined party, we can
overcome any obstacles.

ln conclusion. I express deep apprcciation for the hard work and dedication of our party members.
volunteers, and contributors. Your unwavering support has becn the driving force behind our
achievements, and I am confidcnt that, with your continued commitment, our party will thrive and
positively impact our nation.

'['hank you, and let us anlicipatc anothcr ycar of remarkable achicvcmcnts, unity, and progrcss as we
work towards our common goals.

xvt I
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I [on. Japheth Nyakundi
National Trcasurer
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8. STATEMENT OF NATIONAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE'S RESPON SI BI I,ITI F],S

National Executive Council (NEC) is the exccutive organ olour party. It is lully responsible for the Party's

financial statements. which provide an accurate and lair account ofthe party's financial situation as olthc
conclusion ofthe financial year concluded on 30th June 2023. NEC designs, implements, and maintains
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring
that they are devoid of material misstatements, are all part ol this responsibility. lt also includes
maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that this rcmains effective
throughout the reporting period.

NEC lurther certifies the correctness of the accounting records kept for the Party, upon which the Party's

financial accounts have been based, as well as the effbctiveness ofthe intemal financial control systems.

In the year under review, the party Total Accrued Income, Exchequer Receipts, Nomination Fees and
Donations & Members Contributions was Kshs. 719,539,463 up from Kshs. 537,794,904 last Financial
Year, these being an increasc of 34%. During the year in review we had a Total Expenditure of Kshs.

417,524,562 effectively due to prudent Financial Management Measures.
Over my tcnure as the Treasurer, I have spearheaded significant revenue s(ream geared towards
maximization of Income. ORPP income was at Kshs. 345.8M. with an accrued income of Kshs. 57.2M
reported as at close of that year. Elected members continue to make regular contributions with their
expected revenue per month now at Kshs. 13.5M.

The National Executive Committee is widely responsible for the party's policies, political direction for the
party, membership, Ibrmation of bodies and committees, communications with other parties and state

bodics, and regional and global partnerships with partners and govemments. NEC ensures that party
policies are followed, as well as the NDC. Controlling the party's administration at all levels and making
sure that all activities are carried out in a way that advances the party's goals as well as collaborates with
the other party organs to ensure that the Party's actions and decisions are harmonious and cohcsive.

Guided by our party constitution, NEC has sanctioned sub-committees charged with performing duties
and preparing policies as per this legal framework.

Ultimately, I wish to express my anticipation and conviction that we will be able to guide UDA to greater
heights and continue working with like-minded parlies to improve Kenya.
It's been an honor to work among such accomplished individuals and to be able to present my perspectivc
before you all, thank you, and may Cod watch over you all.

The number of our current elected members is at 1.054 as follows: -

xlx



Item Position No. Of Members
Party Leader ( Prcsident) I

2 Deputy Party Leader (Dcputy President) I

Govemors 20
4 Deputy Covemors 20
5 Senators (Elected) 6

6 Senator (Nominatedl l0
7 Maiority leader (SEN ) I

8 Chief whip(SEN) I

9 Deputy chief whip(SEN ) I

l0 Chair of committee (SEN) t2
ll Deputy chair of committee(SEN) I
t2 Deputy Speaker (MNA) I

l3 Maiority leader (MNA) I

t4 Chief whip(MNA) I

l5 Deputy chief whip(MNA) I

l6 Chair of committee (MNA) 29
t7 Deputy chair of committec (MNA) 24
l8 Member of Parliament (Electcd) 62
t9 Member of Parliament (Nominated) 5

20 2tWomen Representative
2t East Africa Legislative Assembly (EALA) 5

22 Speaker of County Assembly 2l
23 Member of County Assembly (Elected) 5r8
24 291Membcr ol County Asscmbly lNominated)

1054TOTAL
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Lastly, as we enter this Financial Year 2023/2024 I am hopeful that we shall as a party endeavour to fulfil
the manifesto ofthe party and the promises we made to Kenyans.

Nicodemus Bore
National Executive Director
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9. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY 202212023

In the pursuit ofour Party goals and commitment to democratic principles, we are pleased to present

a comprehensive assessment of our perlbrmance against predetermined objectives. We are working

tirelessly to ensure that wc deliver to all thc people as expected.

UDA has five strategic pillars/issues and objectives within the currenl Strategic Plan for the FY

2022/2023. J'hese strategic objectives are as follows:

l) Elections Management:

Having undertaken fair, verillable and accountable Party primaries, the party had a field of strong

candidates to fly her flag in General elections 2022. We were assured of profound wins across the

position thus need for safeguarding our votes.

A robust election monitoring mechanisms enables us to uphold the integrity olthe electoral process.

Voter education programs to enhance civic awareness and participation were put in place and

facilitated.

The various levels ofelections that our members pa(icipated in included;

o Presidential level-l candidate

o Gubemalorial level-41 members

o Senatorial level-40 members

o County Women Representative level43

r Member of National Assembly l-evel-261

. Member of County Assembly level-1286

The Party managed to gamer thc presidential seat,20 (;ubematorial seats,22 senatorial seats,2l

women representative seats. I I 9 Member of national Assembly seats and 518 Member of County

Assembly seats. Our utilization amounted to Kshs. 245,795,914 against a budget ol 450 Million

during the whole eleclion management process.

2) Nominations:

As a result of appointment of three elected members to the Cabinet, the following positions were

gazetted as vacant: -

i. Elgeyo Marakwet Senatorial Position

ii. Kandara Constituency Member of National Assembly

iii. Garissa Township Member of National Assembly
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The vacancy altracted a high number of contestants for this positions necessitating a

pedantically planned and executed nominations that was also delivered by the secretariat.

Garissa 'fownship Constituency and Shella Ward (Lamu) candidates were unchallenged.

3) By-Elections:

The culmination of the abovc Party Primaries would be confirmed or contradicted by IEBC's results.

As predicted UDA's candidates in the three positions went ahead to defend the sets on behalfolthe

Party cementing the fact that thc right choice by our supporters in Nominations was also confirmed

in their By-Elections.

4) ParB Activations:

In our strategic plan done in December 2O22, the party identified membership recruitment as a key

pillar post General eleclions 2022. Therc was a general realisation that parties go silent immediately

after election only to resurlbce in the next election cycles.

So as to keep member inlbrmcd with party matters, deliberate measures to market the parlies are

required. In this regard, party activations were successfitlly organized, engaging members and

fostering a sense of unity and purposc.

There was implementation ol'targeted outreach initiatives to broaden the party's reach and strengthen

grassroots connections. 'fhe budgel lor facilitation of the activations was set at 25 million shillings

and the actual amount utilized was 18.846 million. Our party embarked on a significant joumey to

increase our reach and impact many by conducting membership activations in twenty-five out olforty

- seven counties. The target to recruit membcrs to the party was set to increase to l0 million members.

This remarkable achievement demonstrates the growing appeal of UDA and the trust that people have

in our pa(y's vision and leadership.

5) Programs:

Our manil-esto, clearly outlines the Plan to achieve sustained economic growth & stability. In BETA

proposal, NEC realigned its programs in synch with BETA. The party executed a diverse array of

programs aimed at addressing the needs and concems ofour constituents. lnnovation and flexibility
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in pmgram design was dernonstrated ensuring relevance to the evolving political society. The

programs conducted were county field programs, grassroots meetings and voter mobilisations. The

party is actively preparing for the upcoming grassroots elections scheduled for the month of April

2024. Thesrc, elections are crucial in giving our members a voice and ensuring that their inrcrests are

represented at all levels of govemment. Through these elections, we aim to strengthen the democratic

process and provide a platform for the people's voices to be heard

UDA develops its annual work plans based on the above 5 pillars. Assessment of the Party's

performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The party achieved is
performance targets s€t for the FY 2023 period for its five strategic pillars, as indicated in the table

below:

xxlll



Uniled Democrolic Alliance
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Successful

completion of the

electoral process.

High voter tumout,

indicating public

engagement.

Transparenl and

accurate counting of

voles.

Acceptance of

election results by

candidates and the

public.

Diverse and qualified

candidate pool.

Ensure a fair and

democratic selection of

representatives.

Uphold the principles

of transparency and

accountability in the

electoral process.

Facilitate public

participation and

engagement in the

democratic process.

Establish a legitimate

and represenlative

government.

Voter tumout

percentage.

Number of registered

voters.

Incidenrfree polling

stations.

Accuracy and integrity

of the vote counting

process.

Public conhdence in the

electoral system.

Voter registration

drives.

Candidate

nominations.

Conducting debates

and forums for

candidates.

Organizing election-

day logistics and

polling stations.

Implementing voter

education programs.

Election

s

Manage

ment

Nominat

ions Identify and select

qualified candidates

for elections.

Number of candidates

nominated.

Soliciting and

reviewing candidate

applications.
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Encourage diversily

and representation

within the candidate

pool.

Ensure a transparent

and fair nomination

process.

Representation of

diverse demographics

among candidatcs.

Public perception of

faimess in the

nomination process.

Conducting candidate

interviews or debates.

Communicating

nomination results to

the public.

By-

elections

Fill vacant seats in a

timely manner.

Provide representation

to areas with vacant

positions.

Ensure faimess and

integrity in the by-

election process.

Voter tumout in the by-

election.

Successful filling of

vacant positions.

Transparency and

faimess in the by-

election process.

Candidate

nominations for

vacant positions.

Voter education on

the significance of

by-elections.

By-election logistics

and polling station

setup.

Party

Activati

ons

Increase pa(y

visibility and

engagement.

Mobilize party

members and

supporters.

Build a sense of

community and

identity among party

members.

Attendance at party

events and rallies.

Growth in party

membership.

Social media

engagement and reach.

Organizing rallies,

events, and town hall

meetings.

LJtilizing social media

campaigns.

Membership drives

and outreach

programs.
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Public confidence in

the nomination

process.

Timely fitling of

vacant positions.

Engaged participatior

in the by-election.

Acceptance ol results

by candidates and the

public.

Increased party

visibility and

presence.

Growing and engager

party membership.
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Progra

ms Address specific issues

or challenges within

the community or

society.

Promote the party's

values and platform.

Demonstrale the

party's commitment to

public welthre.

lmpact of programs on

targeted issues.

Public perception of the

parly's commitment to

societal challenges.

Media coverage and

oulrcach for program

initiatives.

Implementing

community

development projecls

Advocacy and

awareness

campaigns.

Ciollaborating with

stakeholders for

program success.

I'angible positive

impact on targcted

lssues

Enhanced public

perception of the

party's commitment

to societal well-

being.

I 0. Corporate Governance Statement

Introduction
The party's mandate is to lacilitate the ltndamental rights, freedoms and potential of Kenyan people

through a devolved, accountable and dcmocratic govemment anchored onto a Bottom-up Economic
Model that promotes equal opportunities, improved economic welfare and shared prosperity.
National Executive Committee
To effectively underlake the mandate, the party's National Executive Committee embraces principles
of good govemance; including equity, diversity, love, unity, freedom, justice, accountability,
transparcncy, and peace.

The National Executive Commitlce is composcd is the highest governing organ in the pa(y.
lt's composed of;

I . National Officials
2. The Parliamentary Party l.eaders and Whips
3. The Govemors' Caucus Chairpcrson and Whip;
4. The Chairperson and Whip of the County Assembly Caucus, and,

5. l'he Executive Director who shall be ex-officio

Committee Changes
The followin are the res ective chan es to National Executive Committee

f)ates
Designation Appointment ResignationsName

Hon. Cecily M. Mbarire National Chairperson February 27,2023
February 27 ,2023Hon. Hassan Omar Deputy Chairperson

Secretary General February 27 ,2023Sen. Cleophas Malalah
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llon. En . Vincent M. Musau

NEC Governancc
'l'he primary responsibility olthe Committee is to makes binding decisions on party management and
its policies. The NFIC sets and oversces the ovcrall policy. broad strategy and framcwork for the party
and monitors the cxecution progress.
'l-he NEC draws its powers and authority liom pa(y constitulion. As the custodians of the party's
govemance structure, the NEC is committed to the principles of best practice in governance. The NEC
continually strives to strengthen the pa(y intemal controls and management and promote a culture of
integrity to support the party in achieving its slrategic and financial objectives.
NEC Responsibilities

i. The NEC is tasked with the following primary responsibitities in providing leadership and

slrategic direction 1tl the party:

ii. The National Executive Committee shall be in charge olthe Secretarial.
iii. T'he National Executive Committee shall provide Party policies, political guidance to the

Pa(y, Pa(y membership, bodies and committees formed by the Party, communications made

to state bodies and others. regional, intemational cooperation with govemments, and partners.

NEC Composition and Diversity
'fhe NEC is composed of diverse and seasoned proiessionals in the field ol business managemenl,
cngineering, finance, accounting, legal, policy, and banking with extensive knowledge and
understanding in various sectors. Thcir combined experience is leveraged to help the party's stratcgic
direction lor improved party perlormance.
NEC Committees
The NEC has established five Committees to enhance its efficiency and effectiveness. Appointment
to these NEC committees takes into consideration diversity of the members' skills, expertise and
experience required to handle respective functions. 'l'he commiltees operate in accordance with
specifi ed terms ol' relerencc.
NEC in this year under review had 8 sittings.
NEC Capacity Development
'['he Committee underwent a comprchensive induction programme tailored to their individual needs

lo acquaint them with their responsibilities as well as keep them abreast of the party's strategy and
operations. In the pcriod, various capacity building programmers locusing on leadership, corporate
govemance, llnance and other relevant areas were conducted fbr the NtlC.
IJach year the Committee prcpares a training calendar where spccific training necds are identified and
scheduled. The trainings fbcus on lcadership, govemance, finance and other relcvant areas.

NEC Evaluation
'l he committee undertook an annual self'-assessment for continuous growth and development of
individual members and to cnhance collective perftirmance.

Nalional
Secretary

Organizing
February 27.2023

Hon. Japhcth Nyakundi 'l'reasurer February 27 .2023
Ilon. Johnson N. Muthama National Chairperson February 15,2023
Sen. Veronica W. Nduali Secretary General Irebruary 27 ,2023

Hon. Karisa Nzai
National
Secretary

Organizing
F-ebruary 27 .2023
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Governance Audit
The Committee continued to implement the corporate govemance audit recommendations from the
audit done the previous year. This is to ensure that the party complies with relevant areas ofcorporale
govemance.
Ethics and Code of Conduct
The party actively promotes a strong ethical culture of accountability and 'doing the right thing'
among its members of stalTand support partners. This is aimed at inculcating and sustaining a value-
based approach in party operations and decision making.

To entrench ethics and integrity, the party conducts intemal trainings and awareness campaigns. The
trainings have enhanced standards ofprofessional conduct and reinforced our core ethical values, and
empowered staff to make ethical decisions and conduct themselves in the best interest of thc
organization. During the period under review our employees underwent training on maintaining ethics
and integrity in the workplace.

The party has initiated a mandatory annual programme requiring alI employees to declare any conflict
of interest in the process of carrying out their official work. The purpose is to deter corrupl practices
at the workplace and rally members of staff to work in the best interests of the pa(y.

In addition, the party continued to implement its whistleblower protection policy to encourage
employees and the public report on malpractices without fear ofretaliation.

Whistle blowing is encouraged through the provision of various reporting channels including an

anonymous online platform and lelephone number 0791555222.
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I l. Management Discussion and Analysis

Introduction:

We are pleascd to present the Managenrent Discussion and Anallsis (MI)&A) lor the linancial year
ending June 30th,2023.'[his rcporl aims 10 provicle stakeholders and our suppo(ers with insights into
the financial perlbrmancc. stratcgic initiatives. and ke1' dcvelopments of'the [Jnited l)emocratic
Alliance (UDA).

Financial Performancc:

In the ljnancial year 2022-2021. thc United Democratic Alliance (IIDA) recorded in tolal revenue ol
Ksh719.539.463.00. This reprcsents a substantial increase comparcd to the prcvious financial year's
total revenue of Ksh53 7.794,904.00 translating lo a 34o/o increase Thc positive income growth is
attributable lo various t'autors, including increased donations, suocesslul lundraising carnpaigns,
positive public suppo(, and the Political [)arties ["und.

Thc income for the flnancial ycar 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 are highlighted below;

These collections: Party Contributions. and Donalions increased the party's income fbr the llnancial
ycar 2022-2023.

'l'lrc inconre lirr the llnancial ycars 2020-202 I .2021-2022 and 2O22-2023 arc represented graphically
below in a pic chart.

N 2022-2023

Source of income
Elected Members contributions
Nomination Fees

Donations Account

Special Membership Category
Aspira nts Registrations Fees

Other lncome
Dispute Resolution Fees

Political Parties Fund

Total Accrued lncome and Contributions

2021-2022 2020-2021

Kshs Kshs

I ro,aoo,ooo.oo 6,239,soo.oo

Kz-6s+,zgs.oo s8s,ooo.oo

". 22,L79,859.40 r 17,592,000.00

L, sz,zEqJgs.oo -

I z,as+,ooe.oo 4,7s1,1oo.oo
- 8t5,947.00

I t,ogt,gql.oo

,4F3.30 F;zgl,goc.oo 29,983,547.@

2022-2023

Kshs

f ire,s+s,ooo.oo
7,282,084.00

p, +o,gss,+or.so
I t ltz,qz3.oo

E+j,sop,+ss.oo
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. MPs & Senators Contributions

. Sales Nominations Papers

. Speclflc Oonations Account

. MCA Contributions

. Hustler Mashinani Contributions

. Asplrants Reglstrations Fees

. Other lncome

. Elected Members Contributions

r Nomination Fees

. Donations Account

. A5pirants Registrations Fees

. Dispute Re5olution Fees

. Speclal Membership CateSory

f ncome for FY 2O2O-2O2L

815,947.m _ 1,760,000.00 585,000,00

lncome for FY 2O2t-2022

10,800,000
7,O91,947

7,834,004

22,r79,A59
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lncome for FY 2022-2023

. Elected Members Contrabutions

. Nomination Fees

. Donations Account

. Special Mefibership Category

. Aspirants Registrations Fees

. Dispute Rerolution Fees

r Political Partaes tund

7,282,084.00

7,1t2,423.00

The combincd revenue tionr the public and nrembers lbr the year is 527o compared to 48% fiont the
National lreasury. It is our continued endeavor that we maintain the trend of matching or surpassing
allocations lionr the exchequer

Operating Expenses:

The operating expenses for the financial year 2022-2023 totaled Ksh418,976,888.00. This represents
a reduction f'rom lhe previous Iinancial year's operating expenses of Ksh491,014,809.00, showcasing
the party's commitment to prudent llnancial management. Additionally, the operating expenses have
seen an increase compared to the 2020-2021 financial year. where they amounted to Ksh
29.470.805.00.

The increase in expenses lbr the linancial year 2021-2022 can be greatly attributed to grassrools
expenses which were incurred during the Party Primaries and by-elcctions which wcre not so intcnsc
during the previous financial year. During the financial year 2020-2021, grassroots expenses were
recorded at Ksh 19,069.401 .00 while in the 2021-2022 financial year. it was recorded at
Ksh438,392.866.00 because ol' an increase in thc grassrools exercise. l-he two financial years'
grassroots expenses are conrpared graphically below
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Grassroot Expense for FY 2020-2O2L

16,000,000.00
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It is important to highlight that the party has remained focused on optimizing its operational ellicicncy
while ensuring rcsponsible allocation of resources. This has been achieved tlrrough rigorous cust-
control mcasures and strategic planning.

Financial Sustainabilig' and Future Outlook:

United Dcmocratic Alliance (LJDA) rcmains linancially stable and well-positioned lbr the luturc. 'l-he

positive trend in operating income. coupled rvith controlled operating expenses, refiects the party's
conrnritmenl to linancial sustainability. T'he party continues kr explore new avenues lbr revenue
gcncration. including innovative tirndraising strategies and engagement with supporters.

Thc financial landscapc is subject to extemal lhclors. such as economic condilions and political
dynarnics. The party is proactively nronitoring these variables and has established contingency plans
1o nritigate potential risks.

Strategic Initiatives:

United Dcrnocratic Alliance (tJDA) has undcrtakerr sevcral strategic initiatives airned at enhancir.rg
its outreach, strcnglhening organizational capabilities, and lbstering nrernbcrs' engagement. lhcse
initiatives irTclude:

l. Technology Integration: Leveraging advanced technologies to streamline communication, enhance
votcr outreach. and irnpnxe organizational elficicnc1".
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2. Part-v Members Programs: Launching programs to conrlect with cornmtrnilios, understand thcir
concerns. and incorporate le'cdback into polici' li)nnulali()ns.

.i. Transparency and Accou ntabilitl,: [.)nrphasizing transpurcllcy in linancial transactions and

opcrational proccsses to build trust anrong stakeholders.
-1. Policy Advocacy: Activell parlicipating in public discourse anrl advocaling lirr policies aligned uith

the pa(y's vision and values.

Conclusion:

ln conclusion. lhc liniincial ycar 2022-2023 has hccn rnarkecl by positive linancial pcrfirrntancc and

stratcgic advancements lirr [-lnited l)enrocratic Alliance (t]DA). The partv rernains comnritted to its
corc valucs, tlnancial rcsponsibilitl', and continuous inrprovcnrl:nt. As ue move lbrvvard, rvc are

conlidenl lhat our strategic initialivcs rvill contributc to thc parl)'s long-lerm sustainabilitl' and

el'lc'ctivencss in serving the intcrests ol'our constituents.

12. Environme ntal and Sustainability Reporting

I. Sustainability Stratery and Profile
United Democratic Alliance (UDA) recognizes the growing importance of environmental and
sustainability reporting as part of its commitment to responsible govemance. 'I'his section outlincs the
sustainability strategy and profile of UDA, with a specific lbcus on the role of lop management,
par(icularly the accounting ot'licer.
A. Sustainable Efforts:
UDA is dedicated to integrating sustainable practices into its operations and policics. The accounting
ollicer, working closely with top management, ensures that sustainable eflbrts are woven into the
labric of the organization. This includes initiativcs such as minimizing the environmental impact of
political campaigns, promoting eco-friendly practiccs within the party, and incorporating
sustainability considerations into decision-making processes.

B. Political and Macroeconomic Trends:
The accounting olTicer and top managemont rcgularly assess broad fiends in the political and
macroeconomic landscape that may affect suslainability priorities. This involves monitoring
govemmental policies, societal expectations, and economic shifts that influence UDA's sustainability
initiatives. By slaying informed and adaptable, L.IDA aims to address emcrging challenges and
contribute positively to the national and global environmental agenda.
ln reference to environmenl and climate change agenda, where governmenl committed to plant l5
billion trees to achieve 30%o coverage by 2032. As part of a broader strategy to combat delbrestation,
enhance biodiversity, and contribute to global efforts to combat climatc changc. Tree planting
initiatives are oflen linked to intemational agreements, environmental conservation goals, and
sustainable development objectives.
UDA has taken up the task ol spearheading this agenda all over the country through its county and
regional offices. Among the projects undertaken in collaboration with local communities;

l. CommunityEngagement:

Foster active involvement and collaboration with local communities in tree planting efTorts.

2. AwarenessCampaigns:
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Conduct cducational campaigns to raise awareness about the benelits of tree planting and the
environmental impact.

3. Partnerships:

Establish partnerships with Ministry of'ljnvironment and Forestry and Kenya F'orest Service to refer
our supporters especially larmers to oblain ccrtified tree seedlings. As a policy we have incorporated
maintenancc oftree nurseries and tree planting as a mandalory responsibility ofour lleld olTicers. As
of closc ol'year under revicw, the party had excess of 5,000 trees and liuits at our hustler center
offices.

4. Tree Adoption Programs:

lmplemenl programs that encourage individuals, schools, and businesses to adopt and care lbr specific
trees.

5. Idenlily Suitablc Locations:

Conduct assessments to identify suitable locations for tree planting, considering ecological factors
and community needs.

6. Select Native Species:

Prioritize the planting of native tree species that are well-suited to the local environment and
contribute to biodiversity.

7. Organize Tree Planting Events:

Plan and execute organized tree planting events, involving volunteers and community members.
C. Reference to International Best Practices:
UDA places a strong emphasis on aligning its sustainability initiatives with intcmational best
practices. The accounting officer collaborates with top management to ensure the party adheres to
recognizcd l'rameworks such as the Global Reporting lnitiative (GRl). This commitmcnt enhances the
credibility of UDA's sustainability eflorts and demonstrates its dedication to mccting global
environmcntal standards.
ln recent days, the United Democratic Alliance (UDA) has enhanced its ties with globally recognized
political parties, such as the China Communist Party. with the aim of engaging in benchmarking
activities.
D. Key Achievements and Failures:
UDA has achieved significant milestones in its sustainability joumey. l'hcse include the successful
implementation ofeco-liiendly campaign practices, reduclion in the party's carbon lbotprint, and the
integration of sustainablc principles into its policy liamework. It's important to acknowledge,
however, that challenges and failures are inherent in any sustainability joumey. UDA is transparenl
about areas where improvements are needed, learning from lailures and continuously adapting its
strategies [br greater sustainability.
lI. Environmental Performance
A. Environmental Policy:
UDA has a comprehensive environmcntal policy that guides its commitment to responsible
environmcntal practices. This policy outlines the pa(y's dedication to minimizing its ecological
footprint, promoting biodiversity. managing wasle rcsponsibly, and rcducing the environmental
impact ol its producls and activities.
B. Successes and Shortcomings:
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UDA has successfully implemented several aspects of its environmental policy. Thesc include the
reduction of single-use plastics in party events, the promotion of sustainable transportation options.
and the integration of green spaces in party facilities. However, UDA recognizes that there are
shortcomings, such as the need for improvement in waste management practices during large-scale
events and the reduction of the environmental impact associated with certain party activities.
C. Biodiversity and Waste Management:
UDA is actively engaged in effo(s to manage biodiversity and waste responsibly. The pa(y supports
initiatives to protect local ecosystems. and where possible, events are organized with minimal
disruption to natural habitats. In terms of wasle management, UDA is committed to reducing. reusing.
and recycling waste generated during party activities. Ongoing efforts involve working with local
communities to implement effective waste disposal strategies.

D. Environmental Impact of Products:
UDA acknowledges the need to address the environmental impact of its products. 1'he party is
exploring sustainable sourcing options for merchandise and materials used in campaigns. Initiatives
include using recycled materials, promoting locally sourced products, and encouraging responsible
consumption practices among supporters.

ln conclusion, UDA is actively committed to a sustainability strategy that encompasses vanous
aspects ol its operations. The accounting officer, in collaboration with top management, plays a
crucial role in driving and implementing these initiatives. By transparently communicating successes,

shortcomings, and ongoing effo(s to improve, UDA aims to contribute positively to the broader
sustainability agenda and set an example for responsible political engagement.
i) Employee welfare

The Unitcd Democratic Alliance (UDA) is a political party duly incorporated and registered in

accordance with the Political Parties Act. The party champions political and economic transfbrmation
of the peopleofKenya through policies inclined at thc bottom-up approach. It is founded on the
principles of good govemance including equity, diversity, love, unity, lrcedom. justice.

accountability, transparency and peace.

Arlicle 22 olthe UDA Constitution establishes the party secretariat which shall be

headed by the Executive Director undcr the supervision of the National Ilxecutivc Committee

through the SecretaryGencral olthe party. UDA views its Secretariat

hereinafter ref'erred to as 'Stafl as its most important asset and resource and the well-being
and appropriate utilization ol'its stalT is ofcritical importance.

There exist Lluman Resource Policies and Procedures Manual t h a t represents thc broad

principlcs of human resourccs policy lbr the staf-fing and administration of UI)A and the ltndamental
conditions olservice and the basic rights, duties and obligations olthe Stalf ofthe party.

UDA's recruitment policy is to recruit stalI members of the highest caliber through a competitive
selection process based on crileria determined by the needs ofthe party andthe requirements ofthe
position. paying due rcgard to the importance of recruiting slaffon a divcrse basis

UDA is an equal opportunity employcr providing equal cmploymcnt opportunities to allapplicants

on the basis ofloyalty, qualification, demonstrated ability, experience and leaming
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The Party shall attract and retain a worklbrce that is qualified. highly molivated, result-oriented
and commitled to excellence in pursuil 1o the mission. vision and success of UDA.

UDA is guided by the lbllowing broad human resources principles applied during stalf
recruitment:

Ensure that as far as possible an optimum number of stalT is maintaincd lbr ellicient and

elltctive management ol the partyl

Ol'ler compensation and maintain a salary structure that is tair, equitable, and sulliciently
attractive to sustain and motivate slalf to strive for excellence in perfornrance;

Provide reasonable terms and condilions of service to stalT that are comparable with lhose
applicable for similar positions in other such institutions, subject to

availability ol'adequate lunds and ability to pay sustainablyl

Promote favourable relations between IJDA as an employer and its employees and among
employees themselves by providing adequate procedures to lacilitate dealing effectively with
inter-stafl confl icts. disputes, and grievances;

Provide an environment where individual employees will participate in the development of
their careers and where they will have the oppo(unity to fully utilize individual talents and

ambitions;

Keep statTinlbrmed ofchanges taking place within the secretariat to enable them to appreciate
thc reasons for the changes.

Delivering the human rights approach with a culturc of fairness, equality and inclusion lbr all
LJDA staff.

Work to deliver faimess. cquality and inclusion lbr people working at UDA through, cquality,
diversity and inclusion objcctive for thc Party stal I
Uphold the principle ot' non-discrimination throughout the recruitnent process to ensure
equitable opportunities for candidates with disabilitics.

In applying equality and non-discrimination in its work, UDA will ensure that women and men
benefit equally from its policies, programs and activities and that inequality is not perpetuated

On matters of'improving skills and managing careers groMh, the lbllowing policies and
procedures are used lor thc purposc ol'need asscssment and stafl development planning at
UDA.

Training necd shall be idcntifled through Annual Performancc Appraisal carried out fbr every
stalT member. At the completion of'the performance evaluation process, head of relevant
direclorate shall identify the training requirement Ibr stalf mernbers of his/her direclorale.
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At thc cnd ol'thc calendar year, all the training requirements shall be conrmunicated to the head

ol'llR in the lbrm ola repo(.

I{R shatl consolidate the training requirements in the lbmr of a Staf f Development Plan

including thc fol lowing inlirrmation:

Prioritized list oithe trainings in coordination with the head ol'relevant directorate along with
a timeline;

Rcsources rcquired fbr successlul complelion ol'the identificd trainings;

Expected outcome of the training:

Identily the funds requircd fbr the training in coordination with the head ol'finance dircctorate
lbr inclusion in the annual budgel.

l'hc stalf development plan shalI then be communicatcd to the lixeoutive Director for approval.

To realize and sustain the Party's Mission and Vision, UDA is committed to providing and

maintaining saf-c and healthy working conditions. equipment and systcms of work for all
employees, associated personnel and other persons who may be on Party premises or afl'ected

by our operations; and to providing instruction, training and supervision as may be deemed

neccssary (required) for this purpose.

In l'ullilling this commitment, the Party shall:

Comply with all applicable National & Intemational Laws, common direclives and

intemationally accepted standards on hcalth and safety

Provide and maintain a safe and healthy working environment including safe systems ol'work

Elirninate Hazards & Reduce Occupational Health and Sat'ety (OHS) Risks

lnlcgrate health and safety ob.jectives into individual business objectives at all levels

Provide adequate resources to meet legal and othcr health and safety obligations

Embed health and saiety requirements at every stage of engagement with suppliers and other

stakeholders

Continuously rr:view the perfbrmancc olthe OH&S management system

Encourage dialogue and active participation of employees to enhance safcly perfbmrance and

maintaining open communication with slakeholders on our salbly and health practices.
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Principal activities
The party's primary goal is inlluencing govemmenl and policy decisions. [n her Strategic Plan and
by realization in our work plans 2022 _23 and beyond, NEC has steered the secretariat to support
The plan. This is made possible by enabling our supporters to gain maximum informalion and
support in all the Govemments BEI A Programs. We have re-engineered our Party Programs to thc
output oriented and information (bcused.

Results

The results of UDA for the year ended June 30,2023, are set out on page ( I ) of the Statement
for Financial Performance is a surplus ofKshs. 349,586,218.00.

NEC

The members of NEC who served during the year are shown on page viii. During the year 3

directors resigned and 5 were appointed with effect from February 27 .2023.

Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of IJDA in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 to carry out the audit of UDA
fbr the yearlperiod ended June 30, 2023, in accordance to section 23 of the Public Audit Act,
2015 which empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.

By Order

Name: Sen. Cleophas Malalah

Secretary General
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13. Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Section 8l of the Public Finance Managemenl Act, 2012 and (Potitical Parties Act, 201 I S 3l (3))

require the Directors to prepare financial statemenls in respect of UDA, which give a truc and lair

view ofthe state ofaffairs of UDA at the end of the financial year/period and the operating results of'

UDA for lhat 2022 2023. The Directors are also required to ensure that the Pa(y's keeps proper

accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position ol'UDA. 'Ihe

Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets tll'the party.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the LIDA's linancial statements,

which give a lrue and fair view ol-the state ol-allairs ofthe party tbr and as at thc end ol'rhe financial'

year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) Mainlaining adequate ii*)ncial

management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be elfective throughout the reporting

period; (ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position of UDA ; (iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls

relevant to the preparation and lair presentation ofthe t-rnancial statements, and ensuring that they are

free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraudt (iv) Saf'eguarding the assets of thc

UDA; (v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) Making accounling

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Party's financial statements, which have been prepared using

appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and cstimatcs, in

conlormity with lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner requirt:d

by the PFM Act,2012 and Political Parties Act, 201 I S 3l (3). The Directors are of the opinion that

UDA's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of UDA's transactions during thc

lrnancial year ended June 30, 2023, and of UDA's financial position as at thal date. 'l'he Directors

further confirms the completeness of the accounting records maintained for UDA, which have becn

relied upon in the preparation of UDA's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems ol

intemal fi nancial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors (o indicate that UDA will not remain a going

concem for at least the next twelve months from the date ol'this statement.
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Approval of the financial statements

UDA's financial statements were approved by the Board on &,O

its

(o^ I 2024 and sigred on

Name: Hon. Cecily M. Mbarire

Chairperson NEC

lf
Name: Sen. Cleophas Malalah

Accounting Officer
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAI
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HEADOUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
PO. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL ON UNITED DEMOCRAT]C ALLIANCE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the United Democratic Alliance
set out on pages 1 to 30, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Reporl oflhe Auditor-General on United Demotatic Alliancefor the year ended 30 June, 2023



30 June, 2023, and the statement offinancial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the United Democratic Alliance as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Political Parties
Act, 2011 and the Public Finance Management Act,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the United Democratic Alliance Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflect final revenue budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.1,490,548,662 and Kshs.719,539,463
respectively resulting in under-funding of Kshs.771,009,199 or 51o/o of the budget.
Similarly, the Party spent a total of Kshs.41 1 ,934,913 against actual receipts of
Kshs.719,539,463 resulting in an under-utilization of Kshs.307,604,550 or 43% of the
actual receipts.

The under-funding and the under-utilization may have affected the planned activities of
the Party which may have impacted negatively on the service delivery to the members.

2. Unaudited Comparative Balances

I draw your attention to the fact that prior to 202212023 financial year, only the financial
statements of Political Parties funded from public funds were being audited pursuant to
Article 229(4)(f) of the Constitution of Kenya, which mandates the Auditor-General to audit
Political Parties funded from public funds. Although the financial statements presented for
audit reflects comparative balances for the year ended 30 June, 2022, 202212023
financial year is considered as the first year of audit and the audit procedures undertaken
did not cover the prior year balances.

My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report o/ the Auditor-Ceneral on Uniled Democrqtic Allionce lor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) o't the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Non-Establishment of Party Offices

During the year under review, the Party had established offices in twenty-one (21)
Counties. This was contrary to the provisions of Section 7(f)(iii) of the Political Parties
Act, 201 1 which states that a Political Party shall be qualified to be fully registered if it has
submitted to the Registrar the location and addresses of the branch offices of the Political
Party, which shall be in more than half of the Counties.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe thatthe audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether processes
and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance were

Report of lhe Audilor-General on United Democrolic Alliqnce lor the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Party's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Party or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Party's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

Report of lhe Auditor-General on United Democratic Alliance lor the yeor en<led 30 June, 2023
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an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ol lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

a

a

a

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Party's
ability to sustain its services. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Party to sustain its
services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report ofthe Auditor-Aeneral on United Demouatic Alliancefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Party to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships
concurred and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence
and where applicable related safeguards.

FCPA n BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

26 June,2O24

Report ofthe Auditor-Generol on United Democrqtic Alliancefor the 1,ear ended 30 June, 2023
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Revenue from non-exchanqe transactions
6 345,800,493Political Parties Fund
6 240.995.463 22,179,859Donations Accounl

22,t19,859586,795,956

Revenue from exchange transactions
6 7.282.084 437.654.298Nomination Fees

6 I 18,349,000 t0,800,000Elected Members Contributions
Aspirants Registrations Fees 6 7.834.004
Dispute Resolution Fees 6 7.091.947

6 7.112,423 52,234,796Special Membership Category
132,743,507 5rs,615,045

TOTAI- REVENIIE 719,539,463 s37,794,904

Expenses
7 336.522.844 418,191,866Grassroots & Election Expenses
8 36.802.968 20,949,708Employee costs
9 350,000 250.000Accrued Expenses
t0 5,589,649 6.607,770Depreciation and amortization expense

Administration Expenses il 38.259.102 24,8t4.465
TOTAL EXPENSES 417.524,562 491,014,809

Surplus beforc tax 302,0 14,90 r 46.780.095

46,780,095Surlrlus for the year 302,014,901

47,57 1,317 791.222Surplus BF
349586r18 47 ,S7 t )17Net Surplus for the vear

15. Statement of Financial Pcrformance for the year ended 30 June 2023

The notes set out on pages (7) to (49) form an integral part of these Financial Statemcnts. Thc
Financial St ments s t out on pages ( I ) to (6) were signed on bchalf oard ol' [)ircctors by

Na me: Sen.Cleop h as Malalah
Accounting Olficer

Name:Joseph Mulili
Head of Finance

Name:
Chairman N Fl,C

y Mbarire

f urf , , ^n 
Date a-l l

lt
^ttDate Jc l!,lf z,;)v Date 2,-, p)1
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Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents t2 229,944,868 15.23 1.7 t0
Receivables from Exchange Transactions l3 44.977.390

Receivables from Non-Exchange fransactions l-l 57,219,045 5,388,900

Total Current Assets J32,r41J03 40,620,610

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment l4 68,070.1t6 45.942.263

Total Non- Current Assets 68,070,1l6 45,942263

Total Assets 400,2 r r,4r 8 86,562,873

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables l5 r7.634,800 5.520.000

Total Current Liabilities I7,634,800 5,520,000

Total Liabilities r 7,634,800 5,520,000

Net Assets

Reserves 32,990,400 11,471,556

Accumulated Surplus l8 349.586,218 47,571,317

Capital Fund

Total Net Assets 382,576,618 8l .042.873

400111,418 86,562,873Total Net Assets and Liabilities

16. Statcment of Financial Position as at 30 Junc 2023

The financial statem.ents set out on pages (l ) to (6) were signed on be o Board ol' Dircctors

by

U

Name: Cleophas Malalah v
Accounting Olficer

Name:Joseph Mulili
Head of Finance

Na
Chai rma

: Hon. Cecil M re

a"/ o, /* ^ 
+ Datc X..o ,-f o/ ^-r,(r^l

2

Date l:r t V Date
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11. Statement ofChanges in Net Assets for the year ended 30 June 2023

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

34,262,778As at July I, 2021 33.471,556 791.222

46.780.095 46,',780,095Surplus/ delicit lbr the ycar

33,'471,556 47,571311 8l,042,873As at June 30, 2022

47,,s71317 81,042,873As at July l, 2022 33,47r,556
(48 l ,l 56) (481,156)Fair value adjustment on

investments

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 302,014,901 302,0 r 4,901

349,586,218 382,576,618As at June 30, 2023 32,990,400

3
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18. Statement ofCash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Political Parties Fund 6 345.800.493

Elected Members C'ontributions 6 I t8,349,000 t0,800,000

437 .654.298Nomination F-ees 6 7,281.084

:2,17q,859Donations Account 6 240.9q5,463

Aspirants Registrations Fees 6 7,E34.004

Dispute Resolution Fecs 6 7 .091.94'.7

Special Membership Category 6 1 ,t t2,423 52,234,',796

C)ther Income 6

Total receiDts 7I9,539,463 537,794,904

Payments
Grassroots & Election [Jxpenses 7 336,522,844 438,192,866

Employee cosls 8 36,802,968 20,949,70E

Administration Expenses 38,259, t02 24.8t4,465

Total Davments 4l1,584,914 484,t57,039
Ad.iustmcnt: Cash and Cash Equivalent l2(c) (48r,1s6)
Nel cash flows from/(used in) operatinq activities 307,473394 53,637,E65

Cash flows from invcsting activities
Purchase of PPE and Intangible asseLs l9 (27,717.500) (25,435.508)

(25.435.508)Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (27,7 r 7.s00)

Cash flows from financing activilies
Increase in Debtors 20

(85,042,73 5 ) (20,000)

Increase in creditors 4,67 4,093
Nea cash flows from financing Activities (85,042,73s) 4,654,093

Net increase/(decrcase) in cash & Cash equivalents 19d,713,158 32,856,450
7 35,23 r ,7 l0 2,375,260Cash and cash equivalcnts at I July

229,944,868 35,231,710Cash and cash equivalenls at 30 June
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ind)

Name:Sen.Cleophu Mahleh
Secretery General

[,,1
Date ?e %7*

Nrme:Jepheth Nyrkundi
Treasurer

Neme:Hon. Cecily Mberire
National Chsirman .

uf o,f ,n,rDrte fp ot -\?a-V Dete

.l
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19. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts for the year ended 30 June 2023

Budeel notes
lncome

I

3

The PPF Furuls vere reduced.from the budgeted 632,718,662 to 3J5,800,193. Moreoever,atotolofKshs.5T,2l9,0l5remqinedourstunlingosatJune30,
2023.

grassroots elections highlr redrced this speciol categon'ofutntrihutions to 5"/o ofprojected amount.

Elected Members tere appointed by the Presidcnt to sene as Cahinet Secretaries. This resulled in Parry' Primuries b rll up the positions anLl ltence Kshs.

7, 2 8 2.081 u'as rcalised.

goodwill support by Narious party nembers excaeded the estinate hy 602'%,.

f=d/c* 100a b c=(a+b) d e=(c_d)
Revcnue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

632.748.662 632.718,60. 345.800.493 286.948. t69 55y"Exchequer Political Parties Fund

Elected Mernbers Contributions 140.500.000 (9.700.000) 130.800.000 | 18.349.000 12.45 1.000 90%
Elections Inconre 600,000.000 ( 51.000.000) 5.r8.000.000 7.282.084 540.7r7.9r6 1Yo

40.000.000 240.995.463 (200.9es.463) 602o/nDonations 20.000.000 20.000.000
Spec ia I Mcrnbcri l-er's 140.000.000 ( 1.000.000) 1i9.000,000 '7 .112.123 li t.887.577 5%

Total income l,533.2dn,662 (42,700,000) 1..190,548,662 719,539,463 771.009.199 18'v"

Expenses
Ernployec Costs 90.000.000 (:64,000) 89,736,000 i6.802.968 i) gtt 0t,) 1t%

l 80.000.000 ( 10.1 11.298) 169.686.702 75,058. l]0 9.1.62 8.5 7: 14o/o
Grassroots Meetings & Voter
Mobilisation

( 81.47e.r00) 6l 7.520.800 t. 132,000 6 I 5.3 88.800Nomination r Panr Primaries 700.000.000 0.35%
E lect ions Managenrent 450.000,000 50.000.000 500.000.000 259.332.7 t4 210.667 -286
Audit Fees 350.000 3 50.000 3 50.000 t00%

4t,648.212 6.806.948 18.45 5, I 60 38,259. r02 10.196.058 79o/oAdrn in istration lixpcnses
(36,2.r9.550) t,125,118,662 41r,934,913 1.013,8t3,749Total Expcnditure t,46t,998,212 29Yo

Surplus for the rreriod 7r,250,4s0 (6,450,450) 64,800,000 307,604,550 (242,804,550) 19.Y"

(6.{50.{50) 64.800,000 27,717,500 37,082,s00 130hCapital Expenditurc 7 t,250,{50
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In summary, while the absolue change in actual comprable income vas adt erse yet lhe overall Wrce age variation was lavowable

Expenscs
l. The varionce in conpensation of wor{orce by 4lo/o was as a remlt of reduced r*emtes fron ORPP. To cttshion against this, the party invested in sound

internal ICT systens, applications and platlorms that enabled us ,o oryrate optimally withoul realizing lhe adverse efect in rcduced work{orce.
2. h is important to disclose that the adverse reduction in reverrv.eslron PPF and the postponernent ofelections hugely reduced our overq{ revenue necessitating

overall cuts in dpenditwes with the uemptions beitg Elections Managenenl

I
Name:Sen.Cleophas Melelah
Secretery General

Date o
Q )o\ V

Name:Japhetb Nyeknndi
Treasurer

Dete

N
Nationel Cheirman

zr/o^ & ,, Date q"A'/t-
nre
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20. Notes to the Financial Statements

I . General Information

United Democratic Alliance (UDA) was established by and derives its authority and

accountability from the Potitical Parties Act. The Partly is a Public Entity and its operations are

regulated by the OIrtce of the Registrar of Political Parties and it is domiciled in Kenya. Tlie

Organisation is a registered Political Party in Kenya under certificate number 0015.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measuremenl

at re-valyed amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment, marketable securitiesl' -,Et'
and finahcial iilfiiiiments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts

and actuarially determided liabililies at their present value. The preparation of financial

statements in conformity with Inteniational Publig Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows

rhe use of estimates and assurhotions. It also ieiiuireihanasement to exercise iudsment in the
' *: .. -t..

process ofapplying UDA's dccounting.policies. The areas irlVdlving a higher degree ofjudgment

or complexity, or where.assumptions and Es{mates are significant to the fiiiancial Statements, are
'' " :'.

disclosed in Note 5 ofrlese financial statem:l.ts:. r:rt u.
The financial statements have been prgparid 'and pibs.elq$ 

.in 
Kenya'shillings, which is the

functional and repo4ing currency. df..LrDA The financill ,qirit"io"ot havre.been prepared in;..,. . 4r:::
accordance with the rFM'4ct, rfre iolitical Parties Act (PP{t2011 s s2lffi International

Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accoulting policies {dg_pled have been

consistently applied to all the years presented.

8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

i. Neu'and umended standards und inlerprelalions in issue elfective in lhe ycar ended 30 June

2023.

IPSAS

Financial

lnstruments

4t: Applicable: l't January 2023:

The objective of' IPSAS 4 I is to establish principles for the financial reporting of

financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information

to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful information

than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial

assets that considers the characteristics ol the asset's cash flows and

the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing;

and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the

hedging anangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a

strong link between an Entity's risk management strategies and the

accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l'r JanuarT 202-i

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relcvance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a repo(ing Entity

provides in its Ilnancial statements about social benefits. The intbrmation

provided should help users of the linancial statements and general-purpose

fi nancial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by UDA.

(b)'fhe key features ol'the operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

9
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(c) The impact olsuch social benefits provided on [JDA's flnancial perlormance,

financial position and cash flows.

The party has taken deliberate stcps post year under review lo accept social

benellt schemes liom its employees. The proposed schemes are set to be

presented and ratified. '[he party policy is to recognise expense of

injury/sickness ofstaffat workplace at the period, hence there have been no

Social Benefit Liabilities over the vear under review.

Amendments to

Other TPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

componcnts of bonowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging

and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was

issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

financial guaranteed oontracts which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Other

improvements

IPSAS

to

Applicable I't January 2023

o /PSIS 22 Disclosure of Finunciol lnformation obout lhe Generul

Govcrnment Sec/r.rr. Amendments to relbr to the latest System of National

Accounts (SNA 2008).

. IPSAS 39: Empktyee Benefils. Now deletes the term composite social

security benelits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measuremcnt.

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from l" January 2023.

l0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ii. New and amended slandords and interprelolions in issue bul nol yel effeclive in the year

ended 30 June 2023.

Early adoption of standards

UDA did adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year.

uI

IPSAS 43 Applicable l"t January 2025

Thc slandard sets out tho principles fbr the recognition, measurement. presentation, and

disclosure of'leases. The objcctive is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant

inlbrmation in a manner that taithfully reprcsents those transactions. This information

gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the etfect that leases have on the

financial position, financial perfrlrmance and cashflows ol'an Entity.

The new standard requires entitics to recognise, measure and present information on

right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 43,28 requires disclosure on commencement dates and change of lease

payments. Whilst the Party has two ofiices (hustler centre and hustler Plaza) and one

warehouse dedicated to its headquarters, the latter's lease is on an incremental basis

after every two years thus impacting on our cashflow. However, the hustler centre lease

will come to lermination on May 3 l, 2024 thus freeing Kshs. 350,000 per month.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Hcld

lor Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable ls January 2025

'l'he Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classilled as held for sale to be measured at lhe lower

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of such assets

to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately

in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued operations to be

presented separately in the statement of financial perlbrmance.

il
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and fines

UDA recognizes revenues from PPF, & Donations when the event occurs and the asset

recognition crileria are met to the extent that there is a related condition attached that would

give rise to a liability to repay the amount. Defened income is recognized instead ofrevenue.

Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the luture economic

benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to UDA and the lair value of

the asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at

f'air value and recognized on oblaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and

property) ifthe transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits

or service potential related to the asset will flow to UDA and can be measured reliably.-Io

the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay

the amount, the amount is recorded in the statement of financial position and realised in the

statement of financial performance over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired

using such iunds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

UDA recognizes revenue from rendering of services by rel'ercnce to the stage of completion

when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is

measured by rcference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated

labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is

recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

t2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Sale of goods

Revenuc from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transl'erred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the

amounl of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or

service potential associated with the transaction will flow to UDA.

Rental income

Renlal income arising from operating leases on investment properlies is accounted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for the Current FY was approved by the NEC May 30,2022. Subsequent

revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with

specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to

the original budget by UDA upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the

final budget. Accordingly, UDA recorded additional appropriations of (Kshs. 42.7M) on the

2023 budget following the goveming body's approval.

UDA's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the

financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification

based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is

prepared on a cash basis. Thc amounts in the financial statements were recast liom the accrual basis

to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

A comparison ofbudgel and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget.

is then presented in the stalemenl of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the

Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for diflerences in

the formats and classification schcmes adopted for the presentation ol the financial statements and

the approved budget. A statement to reconcile thc actual amounts on a comparable basis included in

the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per lhe statement of

financial performance has been presented under Note l9 olthese financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

c) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cosl less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe

items. When significant parts of property, planl and equipment are required to be replaced at

intervals, UDA recognizes such pa(s as individual assets with specific useful lives and

deprcciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed. its cost is

recognized in the carrying amount ofthc plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition

criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit

as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal

consideration the asset is initially measured at its lair value.

d) Leases

Finance lcases are leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and bcnel'its incidental to

ownership ol the leased item to UDA. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the

commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present

value of the luture minimum lease payments. UDA also recognizes the associated lease liability

at thc inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value of thc

future minimum lease payments at initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, lease

payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to

achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are

recognized as linance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated

over the useful life of the asset. [{owever, if there is no reasonable certainty that IJDA will

obtain ownership ol'the assel by the end ofthe lease term, thc asset is depreciated over the shorter

olthe estimated useful life ofthe asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not lransfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental

to ownership of the leased item to UDA. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

c) lntangible assets

Intangible assets acquired scparately are initially recognized at cost. The cosl of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange lransaction is their fair value al the date of the exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assels,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinile

useful life are assesscd for impairment at each reporting date.

f) Research and development costs

UDA expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are

recognized as intangible assets when UDA can demonstrate:

i) The technical f'easibility ofcompleting the asset so that the asset will be available for

use or sale.

ii) lts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

iii) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

iu) The availability of resources to complete the asset.

v) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

development is complele, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of

expected future benefit. I)uring the period of development, the asset is tesled lbr impairment

annually with any impairmenl losses recognized immedialely in surplus or deficit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

g) Financial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of flnancial assets and

llnancial liabilities, introduces new rules tbr hedgc accounting and a new impairmcnt model for

t'inancial assets. UDA does not havc any hedge relationships and theretbre the new hedge accounting

rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements. A financial instrumenl is any contract

that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ofanother

entity. At initial recognition, UDA measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value

plus or minus, in the case ola linancial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or

deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue o1'the financial assct

or financial liability.

a) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

UDA classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through net

assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis ofboth UDA's management model

for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the tinancial asset. A financial

asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held within a managemenl model whose

objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms

ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal outstanding. A llnancial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/

equity il it is held within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cashl'lows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms ofthe Ilnancial asset give

rise on specified dates to cash llows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interesl on the principal

amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or detlcit unless

it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through nel assets/ equity unless an entity has made

irrevocable election at initial recognition for parlicular investments in equity instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SummarT of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

Based on our party model and the cash flow characteristics, UDA classifies its financial assets into

amortized cost or fair value categories tbr financial instruments. Movements in fair value are

presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection ofcontractual cash llows where those cash flows represent

solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through surplus or

deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is subsequently measured

at amo(ized cost and is not part ofa hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the

asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance

income using the efttctive interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments ofprincipal and interest, are measured

at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through net

assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue aIId foreign exchange

gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income from these financial assets

is included in finance income using the effective interesl rate method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollcctible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed lbr impairment on a continuing basis. An estimate

is made ofdoubtiul receivables based on a review ofall outstanding amounts at the year end.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value through surplus or dcficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria lbr amortized cost or lair value through net assets/ equity

are measured at I'air value through surplus or deficil. A business model where [JDA manages financial

assets with the objective ofrealizing cash flows through solely the sale ofthe assels would result in a

lair value through surplus or detlcit model.

Impairment

UDA assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECl-') associated with its

llnancial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through nel assets/equity. UDA recognizes

a loss allowance for such losses a1 each reporting date. Critical estimates and signilicant judgments

made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECl,) are set out in Nolc xx.

b) Financial liabilities

Classification

UDA classilles its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for I'inancial

liabilities measured through profit or loss.

h) Inventories

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its

fair value at the date ofacquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and

conditions are accounted for, as follows:

i) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost ol direct materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing ovcrheads based on the normal opcrating capacity but excluding borrowing

costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of'cost and net realizable value. However,

to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed al no charge or for a nominal charge,

that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and currenl replacement cost. Net realizable

value is the estimated selling pricc in the ordinary course of opcralions, less the estimated costs ol

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories

are recognized as an expcnse when deployed lor utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of

operations of tJDA.
l8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when UDA has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or servicc

potential will be required to settle the obligation and a rcliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation. Where [JDA expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,

under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement

of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

j) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that meet the

eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects ofsocial risks and iii) Address the need ofsociety as a whole.

UDA recognises a social benelit as an expense forthe social benefit scheme at the same time that it

recognises a liability. 'I'he liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at the best estimate of

the cost (the social benefit payments) that UDA will incur in fulfilling the present obligations

represented by the liability.

k) Contingent liabilities

UDA does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes

to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an oulflow of resources embodying economic

benefits or service potential is remote.

l) Contingent assets

UDA does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible asset *hose existence

is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly

within the control of UDA in the notes to the flnancial statements. Contingent assets are assessed

continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial stalements. If it

has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and

the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the relaled revenue are recognized in the

tlnancial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

m)Nature and purpose of reserves

UDA creates and maintains reserves in lerms of specific requirements. 'l'hc source of the party

reserves is from contributed capital (redeemable) and accumulaled surplus fiom previous years (non-

redeemable).

The accumulated surplus can finance supplementary eslimates in luture.

n) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

UDA recognizes the efl'ects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. 'fhe effects ofchangcs

in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

o) Employec benefits

Retirement benefit plans

UDA provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans are

post-employment beneflt plans under which an Entity pays fixed contributions into a separate Entity

(a tund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay fu(hcr contributions if the fund does

not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and

prior periods. 'lhe contributions to l'und obligations for the payment of retirement benelits are charged

against income in the ycar in which they become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment

benefit plans other than defured-contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued

tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Dellcits identified are recovered through lump

sum payments or increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers.

The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

p) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of'exchange on the date

of the transaction. Tradc creditors or debtors denominated in Ibreign currency are reported at the

statement ol'Ilnancial position repo(ing date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchangc

dil'(crences arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting ofcreditors at rates differcnt

from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or

expenses in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

q) Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or

constructed and borrowings have been incuned. Capitalization ceases when construction ofthe asset

is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

r) Related parties

UDA regards a related pa(y as a person or an Entity with the ability to exert conlrol individually or

jointly, or to exercise significant influence over UDA, or vice versa. Members ol key management

are regarded as related parties and comprise NEC members, directors, the ED and senior managers.

s) Service concession arrangements

UDA analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters in determining the

appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In parlicular, where a private party

contributes an asset to the arrangement, UDA recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls

or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide

them, and at what price. In the case of assets olher than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through

ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the

end ofthe arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that

an asset has been recognized, UDA also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash

consideration paid or received.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

t) Cash and cash equivelents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call,

Mobile Money and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which

are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

value. Bank account balances include amounts held at Equity Bank Ltd and Access banks at the end

of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also

include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and,/or institutions which

were not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial year.

u)comprm

Where necessary com or the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the tation.

a

v) Subsequent events

There have been no events
t

uent to ial year end with asl pact on the

fi nancial statements for ended June 30, 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation ol UDAiy financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that allect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end ol the reporting period.

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to lhe carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. State all

judgements, estimates and assumplions made:

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk olcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. UDA based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were

prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change

due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of UDA. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual value

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the foltowing indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by UDA.

b) The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility, and adaptability to changes in technology and processes.

c) The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.

e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the inlormation available.

Additional disclosure ofthese estimates ofprovisions is included in Note 40. Provisions are mcasured

at the management's besl estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting

date and are discounted to present value where the eff'ect is material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
6. Exchan e and Non-Exchan e Revenue

Exchange Revenue Transaction

TOTAL REVENUE

7. Grassroot Expenses

TOTAL GRASSROOT EXPENSES

8. Employee Cost

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COST

9. Accrued Expenses

TOTAL ACCRUED EXPENSES

132,743,507 5 l5 615 045

7L9,539,463 537,794,904

776 5)? 844 4'lR ',1S7 R66

8 20.949.708

2s0.000

Reven ue from non-exchange transrctions
345,800,493Political Parties Fund
240,995,463 22,1',l9,859Donations Account

22,t79,859Non-Exchange Revenue transactron 586,795,956

Revenue from exchanqe transactions
'1,282,084 43',7 ,654 ,298Nomination Fees

I r8,349,000 10,800,000Elected Members Contributions
7,834,004Aspirants Registrations Fees
7 ,091,947Dispute Resolution Fees

1,t 12,423 52,234.796Special Membership Category
Other Income

728.600Aspirants Forum Expenses

18,846,600Party Activations
5,432,6807,878, t 86Promotional Materials

24,784,018 44,127,t t0Grassroots Meetings & Voter Mobilisation

Meetings and Conferences 23,549,326

2,t32,M 184.904,476Nomination / Party Primaries

3,200,000259,332,714Elections Management

20,949,70836,802,968Staff Costs

3s0.000 250,000Accrued Audit Fees
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
10. Depreciation expense

TOTAL DEPRECIATION COST

I 
'l 

. Administration Expenses

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COST

12. Cash and Cash equivalents

a.) Summary

38.259-102 24.814.465

5,589,649 6,607,770Prope(y, Plant and Equipment

Materials Purchases 64,800

3,306,970 5,8 t 7,125Office expenses

Newspaper Supplies 25,520

Telephone Charges 30.000 t6,230

Intemet, E-mail Charges 4,849,066 r,845,459

Courier, Periodicals 18,250

Advertisement & Publicity |,026,864 7 ,7 59,720

Stationery 346.500 874,2M

Bank charges 99,506 130.154

Water Rates and Electricity Bills t,303,262 1,028,699

Rent 2l ,600,000 5,400,000

Repairs & Maintenance 614,933 363,423

General Cleaning 4,317,000 1,218,340

Loose Tools I t2.500

Subscriptions 765,000 140.000

Political Parties Fund 188,831,844

Access Bank Ltd r 87,1 82 I,441,142

Equity Bank Ltd 8414 main 315,605 r,887,755

Equity Bank Ltd Special Membership 344,542 29 ,53'7 ,12',7

Equity Bank Ltd Donations usd 430,952 '773.095

Equity Bank Ltd Donations kshs 4t I,749 t,385,589

Elected Members Account 39,301,460

Cash Account 32,500

Petty Cash Account t21,534 t'74,502

TOTAL CASH AND CASII EQI.JIVALENTS
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a) Current Account
Political Parties Fund 081-o28-33 8-3487 188,83 r ,844

00 I -0 l0-000- I 252 1 87,1 82 1,441,142Access Bank Ltd
081-{28-078-84 t4 3 15,605 I,887,755Equity Bank Ltd 8414 main

3M,542 29,537,127Equity Bank Ltd Special Membership 081-{28- ll 8-1434

08 r -028-l t8-r 541 430,952 773,095Equity Bank Ltd Donations usd

138s,s89Equity Bank Ltd Donations kshs 08 l-{28- I I 8- 1452 411,749

39,301,460Equity Elected Members Account 081428-204-4266

35,024,708229,,82333s

32,500Cash Account
121,534 174,502Petty Cash Account

12r,534 207,002Sub- Total
35231,710Grand Total 229,944,868

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

b.) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

c. Ad ustments for lhe ear

The balances as shared in notet 12 (c) indicate the corrected tlgures as reported in the
amended financial ttatementt for the year ended 3Oh June 2O23.

13. Party Debtors/ Receivables

TOTAL EXCHANGE TRANSACTION
TOTAL RECEIVABLES

44,977J90.00 5388,900.00
102,196,435 5,388,900

3 r5,605. r5 t35,238.32Equity Bank Ltd 8414 main I E0,366.83
344,542.30 (616,3e4.57)Equity Bank Ltd Special Membership 960,936.87

1,141,303.70 660,147.45 (481 , 156.2s)

Receivables from Non-Exchange TrrnsrcaioDs
57 ,219 ,045 .00PPF Outstanding

s7119,04s.00TOTAL NON-EXCHANCE TRANSACTION
Receivables From Exchange Transactions

40,337,390.00Elected Members Arrears
5,388,900.00Debtors

Prepaid Rent 4,640,000.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Kshs

55,523,142

27,7 t7,500

83,240,642

83,240,,642

9,580,878

5,589,649

15.,170,527

68,070,r 16

45,942,,263

Cost or Valuation:
25Y.

Kshs
5o/o

Kshs
30o/o

Kshs
12.50/"

Kshs
t2.so/"

I(shs

As at 0l July 2022
Additions during the year 27,350,000

17,005,000 7,238,325
367.500

29,003,486 2.276,33t

Cost as at 30 June 2023 27,3s0,000 17,005,000 7,60s,E2s 29,003,486 2,,216,331

Disposal

Adjustments
As at 30th .lune 2023 27,350,000 17,005,000 7,605,825 29,003,486 2,276,331
Depreciation and Impairment

At I Julv 2022 2,276,438 2,431,138 4,378,732 494.57 t

Annual Depreciation 736,428 t,552,406 3,078,094 222.720

Annual Impairment
At 30 June 2023 3,012,866 3,983,s44 7,456,826 717,291

Net book values

At 30 June 2023 27,350,000 13,992,,134 3,622,,281 21,546,660 1,559,040

At 30 June 2022 14,72E,562 4,807,187 24,624;7* 1,781,760
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Trade and Other Accounts Payablc

Total non-current borrowings

16. Goods and Services Payments

Total

17. Cash Generated from Operations

Net Cash Flow from operating activities

18. Ca ital In ection

Total

l9- Cash From Investin activities

4t t _584.911.21 4R4 t57 01R fl6

107.954.549.76 si 6't7 R64 8',1

349.586-218

_l_z-6.!1.E00-00 s.520.000.00

o 47 s7t 1t7 00

(27,717,50O.00) 25,43s,$8.00

Party Creditors Control A/C 17,284,800.00 5,000,000.00

Accrued expenses 350,000.00 520,000.00

336,522,843.67 438,392,866.17Grassroots Expenses ( Note 2)

20,949,708.00Employee costs 36,802,968.00

38,259, l0 t .54 24,814,464.69Administration Cost

102,014,901 .l 5 46,780,095.00Surplus for the year before Tax

350,000.00 250,000.00Add Accrued Expenses

6,607,769.83Add Depreciation 5,589,648.61

47,571,31'.t.@ 791,222.00Ordinary Capital

102,014,901.00 46,780,095.00Retained Earnings

25.435.508.00Purchase off PPE (27.7 t7,500.00)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

20. Cash From Financing rctivities

Total

2l . Debtors Control Account

Total

(85,0112,735.(x)) 455s,192.93

;l1i

''..- \_ _,.,../

' ,d'\.
.,,'i -r-"i

,nt 
t\.\

(96.807,535.00) (348,900.00)Incrcase In Debtors
12,I 14,800.00 (40,000.00)Incrcase In Creditors
(350,000.00) 4,944,W2.93Capital Refundable

Elected Members Arrears 40,337,390.00

PPFOuat"&- 57,219,04s.00

Debtom - ,,'W,,.. 5J88,900.00

Prepaid Rent
-\--\t 

,\** 4,640,000.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

22. Financial Risk Management

UDA 's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and Iiquidity risks and

elfects ofchanges in loreign currency. UDA 's ovcrall risk management programme focuses on

unpredictability ofchanges in the busincss environment and seeks to minimise the potcnlial adverse

effbct of such risks on its performance by setting acceplable levels of risk. UDA does not hedge

any risks and has in place policics to ensurc that crcdit is only extended to customers with an

established credit history. UDA's llnancial risk management objectives and policies are detailed

below:

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that tJDA's Ilnancial condition may be adversely alTected as a result of

changes in interest rate levels. UDA's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits. 'fhis exposes (JDA

to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate

movements on UDA's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage thc interest rate rish management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that oller

favourable interest rates.

Financial Risk Management

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

a) Financial instruments measured at fair value.

Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

IPSAS 30 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those

valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained

from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect UDA 's market assumptions. 'fhese two

types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

a

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.'Ihis

level includes listed equity securitics and debt instruments on exchanges.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable lor

the asset or liability. either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived lrom

prices).

Level 3 - inputs fbr the asset or liability that are not based on observablc market data

(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments with

l0
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significant unobservable components. This hierarchy requires the use ofobservable market

data whcn available. UDA considers rclevant and observable market prices in is valuations

where possible.

23. Events efter the Reporting Period

IXsclocure

The outstanding PPF funds Kshs. 57M were received on July 04, 2023.

The Elected Members contribution outstanding collections are enforceable and collecable.

Obrervetion

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

24.vtti te and Holding Entity

registered with ORPP No.0015.UDA isa

25. Currency

The financial statern€nts are ) rounded to the nearest Kshs.
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21. Appendices
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